ALASKA STATE LEQ SLATURE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COWM TTEE
April 15, 2003
8:02 a.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Bruce Weyhrauch, Chair
Representative JimHolm Vice Chair
Representati ve Nancy Dahl strom
Representative Bob Lynn

Represent ati ve Paul Seaton
Representative Ethan Berkow tz
Representati ve Max Gruenberg

VEVMBERS ABSENT
Al l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 243

"An Act establishing state agency program perfornmance nanagenent
and audit powers in the Ofice of the Governor for the
eval uation of agency prograns; and providing for an effective
date."

- HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 248
"An Act relating to the annual salary of the chief procurenent
officer; and providing for an effective date."”

- HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE BILL NO 134

"An Act authorizing the Departnment of Corrections to enter into
agreenents wth nmunicipalities for new or expanded public
correctional facilities in the Fairbanks North Star Borough, the
Mat anuska- Susitna Borough, Bethel, and the Mnicipality of
Anchor age. "

- HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE BI LL NO 221

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- April 15, 2003



"An Act meking it a class C felony to knowingly neke a false
statenent relating to citizenship or residency on an application
for voter registration or reregistration.”

- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 266

"An Act relating to elections, questioned ballots and questioned
voters, voter registration, training of election officials,
preparation of el ection mat eri al s, vot er i dentification,
absentee voting, counting ballots, and the primary el ection; and
providing for an effective date."”

- BILL HEARI NG POSTPONED TO 4/ 17
PREVI QUS ACTI ON
BILL: HB 243

SHORT TI TLE: EVALUATI ON OF AGENCY PROGRAMS
SPONSOR(S): RLS BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNOR

Jrn-Date Jr n- Page Action

04/ 04/ 03 0769 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

04/ 04/ 03 0769 (H STA, FIN

04/ 04/ 03 0770 (H) FN1: ZERQ( GOV)

04/ 04/ 03 0770 (H GOVERNOR S TRANSM TTAL LETTER

04/ 10/ 03 (H FIN AT 1: 30 PM HOUSE FI NANCE
519

04/ 10/ 03 (H M g Postponed Until Adjnnt of
F/ Sessi on

04/ 15/ 03 (H) STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TCL 102

BILL: HB 248
SHORT TI TLE: SALARY OF CHI EF PROCUREMENT OFFI CER
SPONSCR(S): RLS BY REQUEST CF THE GOVERNOR

Jrn-Date Jr n- Page Action

04/ 04/ 03 0786 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

04/ 04/ 03 0786 (H STA

04/ 04/ 03 0786 (H FN1: ZERQ( ADM)

04/ 04/ 03 0786 (H GOVERNOR S TRANSM TTAL LETTER

04/ 15/ 03 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 102

BILL: HB 134
SHORT TI TLE: CORRECTI ONAL FACI LI TY EXPANSI ON

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 2- April 15, 2003



SPONSCR( S) : REPRESENTATI VE( S) STOLTZE

Jrn-Date Jr n- Page Action

02/ 26/ 03 0306 (H) READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

02/ 26/ 03 0306 (H) STA, FIN

03/13/03 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TCL 102

03/ 13/ 03 (H Schedul ed But Not Heard

04/ 01/ 03 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TCL 102

04/ 01/ 03 (H Heard & Held

04/ 03/ 03 (H M NUTE( STA)

04/ 15/ 03 0996 (H COSPONSOR( S) :  SEATON

04/ 15/ 03 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 102

W TNESS REG STER

PAT DAVI DSON, Legislative Auditor

Di vision of Legislative Audit

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 243.

DAN SPENCER, Director

Di vision of Administrative Services

Department of Adm nistration

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 248.

JAY HOGAN, Deputy Director

O fice of Managenent & Budget (OVB)

O fice of the Governor

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of the adm nistration
to answer questions during the hearing on HB 243.

REPRESENTATI VE Bl LL STOLTZE

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as sponsor of HB 134.

MARC ANTRI M Comm ssi oner

Department of Corrections

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions during the hearing on
HB 134.

JI M LECRONE, Busi ness Agent

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 3- April 15, 2003



Public Safety Enpl oyees Associ ati on (PSEA)
Anchor age, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 134.

DEE HUBBARD
Sterling, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 134.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 03-40, SIDE A
Number 0001

CHAIR BRUCE WEYHRAUCH called the House State Affairs Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 8:02 a.m Representati ves Hol m
Seaton, Dahlstrom and Wyhrauch were present at the call to
order. Representatives Lynn, Berkowitz, and G uenberg arrived
as the nmeeting was in progress.

HB 243- EVALUATI ON OF AGENCY PROGRAMS

Number 0091

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH announced that the first order of business was
HOUSE BILL NO 243, "An Act establishing state agency program
performance nmanagenent and audit powers in the Ofice of the
Governor for the evaluation of agency prograns; and providing
for an effective date.”

Number 0103

PAT DAVIDSON, Legislative Auditor, Division of Legislative
Audit, Al aska State Legislature, assisted with the presentation
of HB 243. She said the history of the audit function in the
executive branch has been "a bit spotty.” She continued as
fol |l ows:

Many of the agencies actually have internal audit
shops in their organization; however, nost of that
work is in support of a federal requirenent to nonitor
"sub-grantees” ... - they're focusing on auditing
externally to the departnent.

W at [the Division of Legislative Audit], for the
nost part, have been the main audit shop for the State
of Al aska. W are an external auditor for both the
executive and the judicial branches of governnent.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- April 15, 2003



Qur audit work spans financial audits, performance
audits, and sunset audits.

| don't Dbelieve that the <creation of this would
mnimze our audit to any degree; however, having [an]
ongoing audit group in the executive branch is one of
t hose i nt er nal control itens t hat shoul d be
functioning in a state.

MS. DAVI DSON concluded that in general she supports [HB 243].
In response to questions by Representative Holm she said the
sunset reviews and the financial audit of the state are nandated
by statute. She noted, "The statute also provides for
i ndividual legislatures, wth the approval of the [Joint
Comm ttee on Legislative Budget and Audit, for us to do what we
term'special' or 'performance' audit.”

Nunber 0343

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM opined that an audit should not be an
internal audit; rather, it should be an external for internal
pur poses. He asked if anyone else besides [the Division of

Legislative Audit] does auditing of state admnistration or
state functions, for exanple.

Nunmber 0460
MS. DAVI DSON answered as fol |l ows:

Typi cal |y, when we get into gover nnment a
organi zati ons, the questions that conme up have to do
wi th i ndependence. Being in the legislature, having
the legislature control our budget, is one of the key
functions to ensuring our independence with respect to
the ... executive branch or the judicial branch. | f
you look at it in private industry, private industry
CPAs are paid by the agency that they're auditing. In
our case that's not what happens.

What an internal audit function could do for the
executive branch would be to allow the governor's
office to respond to issues that come up within their

own agency's factor. To answer your question about
ext er nal audi ting: Primarily, t he fi nanci al
statenments of what would be ternmed "the quasi-
corporations of state governnent” - the [Al aska
Per manent Fund], ADA, student l|oans - those typically

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 5- April 15, 2003



have had their financial audits done by private CPA
firms. And a lot of that has to do with [the fact
that] they' re al so bondi ng agenci es.

Number 0552

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH asked if there is a privilege that attaches to
an audit, between the auditor and the client. In response to a
request for clarification from Ms. Davidson, he said he used the
word privilege in a practical sense, rather than a |egal one.
He continued as foll ows:

If this bill were to becone effective and [an] auditor
in the executive branch were to conduct an audit

and evaluation of an agency program and then [the
Division of Legislative Budget and Audit] did an
audit, would the earlier executive branch audit be ...
reviewable by the legislative auditors, or is that
sonething that would be a privileged docunent that you
woul d not be able to see or review?

M5. DAVIDSON responded that the statutes [regarding] the
Division of Budget and Audit allow that entity to review all

confidential informtion. She stated her understanding that in
the proposed legislation, "They're asking for confidentiality
for their internal audits and their working papers; therefore

we would be able to review those if we were asked to ... do an
audit.” In terns of privilege, she said, the work papers of
[the D vision of Legislative Budget and Audit] have been deened
privileged by a superior court ruling. She added that that

ruling did not conme fromthe suprene court.

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH clarified that he wanted to know whether the
audit function that would be carried out if HB 243 becane |aw
woul d be sonething that [the Division of Legislative Budget and
Audit] would be able to review during the course of its audit,

so that it would have a full idea of what had transpired.
M5. DAVIDSON replied, "M. Chairman, | would expect that they
woul d. " She added that it would be the sanme as when the

division gets into audits and reviews files of the onbudsman, or
the Alaska Conm ssion for Human Rights, if they're relevant in
any way, for exanple. She concluded, "So, | would expect that
these would fall under the same review process.”

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH referred to [page 2, lines 4-5, of HB 243],
whi ch read as foll ows:

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- April 15, 2003



I nt er nal audi t work  papers and other rel at ed

supportive nmaterial are confidential, and internal
audit reports are confidential until released by the
gover nor.

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH asked if that neans that they are not released
to the public pursuant to "some sort of freedom of information
Act request.”

V5. DAVIDSON surmised that that is true; however, she said she
is not the best person to answer the question.

Number 0797

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON comrented that the type of audit nentioned
in HB 243 is regarding performance managenent and agency
progranms, for exanple, which is I|ike conparing apples and
oranges next to financial audits. He asked if the type of audit
in HB 243 is simlar to audits that the division perforns for
LAA [Legislative Affairs Agency].

MS. DAVI DSON answered that the division does performance audits
at the request of the Joint Commttee on Legislative Budget and
Audit. She added, "That's not to say that we don't do financial
auditing as well. W can performall of those audit functions."
She posited that a question could address why [Governor Frank
Mur kowski] feels it's necessary to have an internal audit shop
created so that he has a staff of auditors to do the things on
his priority basis. She pointed out that having [the Division
of Legislative Budget and Audit] try to neet the needs of all
audits is difficult for the executive branch, because it doesn't
control the division's audit workload - the |egislature does.
She concluded that the question that the conmmttee is
considering is not whether the division is capable of doing the
audits - because it is; rather, it's whether or not it wants to
create an audit function in the executive branch, as well.

Number 0963

M5. DAVIDSON, in response to a question by Representative
Seaton, said whether it is a performance audit or financial
audit, the people needed as staff are those who have been
trained in a methodical, analytical program and think about
things in an analytical way. She opined that the [issue of] the
funding for the positions are better left to be answered by the
governor's representative.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- April 15, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON referred to the zero fiscal note and said
he had just been trying to figure out whether the issue at hand
is conplicated or sinple.

Nunmber 1067

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH noted that no one was present to testify on
behalf of the admnistration; therefore, he announced that HB
243 woul d be hel d over.

[Later in the neeting, a representative of the admnistration
arrived and so discussion of HB 243 was conti nued. ]

HB 248- SALARY OF CH EF PROCUREMENT OFFI CER

Nunmber 1088

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH announced that the next order of business was
HOUSE BILL NO. 248, "An Act relating to the annual salary of the
chief procurenent officer; and providing for an effective date."

Nunber 1125

DAN SPENCER, Director, Dyvision of Admnistrative Services,
Departnent of Admnistration (DOA), said the proposed bill is a
sinple one that would increase the salary of the chief
procurenent officer by "one range.” He noted that the reason
[for the increase], as stated in a transmttal Iletter from
[ Governor  Murkowski, dated April 3, 2003, included in the
commttee packet], is because the chief procurenent officer is
currently functioning as the division director. The director
position is being elimnated, while either a deputy director or
adm ni strative nanager position wll be created. At this point
in time, he said, there is a leasing and facilities nanager - a
position which has existed for several years - and the chief
procurenent officer. There wll be a new admnistrative
services manager or deputy director, dependi ng upon

classification action.

MR. SPENCER explained that the proposed increase in salary by
one range is to ensure that there is sonme separation between the
two subordinates and the chief procurenent officer, and to
recogni ze t he chi ef pr ocur enent of ficer's addi ti onal
responsibilities in deciding the course of policy issues for the
di vi si on.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 8- April 15, 2003



Nunber 1200

MR. SPENCER, in response to a question by Chair Wyhrauch,
explained that a division director's salary is a range 26. The
chi ef procurenent officer's salary would be raised to range 24.
He said he thinks the reason that the salary would be only a
range 24 is that, by statute, the chief procurenment officer is
in the position for six years and may only be renoved "for
cause," which is different from a director's partially exenpt
position which "may be renoved for just about anything."
Therefore, there is a level of certainty of the enploynent that
is enjoyed [by the chief procurenent officer] that 1is not
enjoyed by "a normal division director."”

MR. SPENCER, in response to a series of followup questions by
Chair Wyhrauch, said Vern Jones presently fills the chief
procurenent officer position. He stated his belief that M.
Jones was just reappointed and, therefore, is in the first of a
Si x-year term

Nunber 1340
REPRESENTATI VE HOLM asked how much [a range 24 pays].

MR. SPENCER replied that he did not bring the salary amount with
himto the neeting.

Nunmber 1348

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ referred to the two fiscal notes. He
said he finds it incredibly problematic that increased salary

costs aren't available in current appropriations. He said, "If
there's an increased salary cost, | think it's inportant to note
what it is.”

REPRESENTATIVE BERKON TZ said noving a bill through the
| egislature has a cost itself, whi ch, he recalled, IS
approxi mately $5,000 to $10,000 per bill. He said it seens
horribly inefficient to be doing targeted salary increases for
i ndi vi dual nmenbers of the adm nistration. He asked, "Is this
going to be sone kind of consistent policy?" He suggested, "O
maybe we can get one sort of ommibus bill effecting menbers of
the adm nistration, so we wll have them all in one fell swoop

and, perhaps, be able to save enough to pay the people the extra
noney. "

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 9- April 15, 2003



MR SPENCER answered that he had no idea whether there would be

an omibus bill. He explained the reason that there is no cost
in [the fiscal note] is because a range 26 F position is being
elimnated to create a range 23 E position. Wth all the
previously stated position changes, the result wll be "a

several thousand dollar savings over the course of the year."

Nunmber 1423

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ opined that a fiscal note, in order to
be fully transparent, ought to contain that information. He
said the fiscal note [before the commttee] only |ists zeros,
with [the following] narrative: "Funding for the increased
salary cost is available in the ~current appropriation.”

Representative Berkow tz continued as foll ows:

| realize this isn't your responsibility, but one of
the few methods | have of comunicating wth the
adm nistration is when nenbers of the adm nistration
cone before commttees on which I sit. And, this is a
consistent pattern and a troubling pattern. Zero
fiscal notes nmean that there is no cost, not that
there's a change in costs or that one item goes up and
another item goes down; it means there is no cost.
And | think that the fiscal note ought to fairly
reflect what's going on, and then let us nmake a
determ nation. This is shell ganes wth noney.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ told M. Spencer that he did not need
to respond to that, because he shouldn't bear the brunt of
concern.

Nunmber 1489

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH asked how many specialized enpl oynent categories
there are "like this.” He asked if the legislature could
concei vably be "seeing" 20 to 30 of these bills.

MR. SPENCER answered that he does not know. He recalled the
followng statutory positions that may only be renoved "for
cause": the public defender in DOA, three Alaska Gl & Gas
Conservation conmm ssioners, and the Adm nistrative Law Judge.

Number 1552

REPRESENTATI VE  SEATON  said he concurred wth sonme of
Representative Berkowitz's concerns [regarding the fiscal note].

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -10- April 15, 2003



He said a zero fiscal note seenms to indicate that there's no
change, while the cover letter states that "we're basically
saving noney," which is a change that should nake the fisca
note a negative one. He said he would like to see the fisca
not es addressed and changed [to reflect] the costs that woul d be
seen.

Number 1582

REPRESENTATIVE HOLM said one of the [considerations] IS
different step grades [within each range].

MR. SPENCER clarified that a person gets paid depending on how
|l ong he/she is in the system

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM said the inpact would change, based upon how
| ong the person has been [an enpl oyee].

MR. SPENCER responded that it would change slightly.

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM concl uded, "So, | don't know that you could
come up with a direct single-dollar figure.”

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noted the change in salary froma range 23
to a range 24.

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM pointed out that "it changes on the sub
grade."” He asked how many sub grades there are.

CHAI R WVEYHRAUCH answered, "A through F."
Nunber 1653
REPRESENTATI VE SEATON opined that |[Representative Holm is

talking about what the particular salary of a person is,
whereas, the purpose of [HB 248] is to change "the entire salary

range for that position.” He said he reads the bill as
elimnating a range 26 position and adding a range 24 position

He said there has to be a fiscal inpact [to reflect] those
changes.

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH said he thinks what Representative Holm [is
saying] is "what is the range per step of this enployee, too,"
whi ch may have an effect on the fiscal note.

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM said, "That is correct."”

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -11- April 15, 2003



Nunber 1725

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ asked what the difference is between a
[range] 23 A and 24 A

Nunber 1730

MR. SPENCER responded that he does have the information;
however, he asked to address the issue of the fiscal note first.
Fi scal notes have been done several different ways in the past.
One way, he noted, is a zero fiscal note, like the one before
the commttee. Another way is an "information fiscal note,"
where information is provided, while pointing out that no
addi ti onal appropriation is needed. He said, "W would be happy
to anmend the fiscal note to provide that infornmation; we're not
trying to hide any information here." He offered to have that
ready for the comrittee in the afternoon.

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH said he thinks the conmttee needs a revised
fiscal note, [or at |east the departnment] needs to look at it
again and, if it doesn't revise it, tell the conmttee why it is
"sticking with it."

MR. SPENCER said he thought what [the departnment] would do is
provi de the nunbers in an information fiscal note, including [a
nessage to say] that no appropriation is necessary.

Number 1832

MR. SPENCER, in response to a question by Representative Lynn
told the conmttee that the bi-weekly salaries are as follows:

The chief procurenment officer, right now, is at a
range 23 K, which would be $3,307.50 ... and ... would
go up to $3,535. 00.

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH referred to the salary schedule in AS 39.27.011.

MR. SPENCER reiterated that the <chief procure officer is
currently at a step K, which is a "longevity step." |In response
to a request for clarification by Chair Wyhrauch, he said,
"There's a nethodology in the statute that shows how you conpute
the additional steps.” He offered to provide that to the
commttee as part of the revised fiscal note. He noted that the
schedul e before the coomittee "takes you from step A through F."
He explained that those are annual nerit increases [rewarded
for] satisfactory performance and increased value [of the

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -12- April 15, 2003



enpl oyee] to the state. Beyond step F, he said, are the
| ongevity steps, which are addressed in the statute. Basically,

enpl oyees stay at step F for two years, then go to step J. He
noted, "This is in the partially-exenpt schedule, because sone
of the bargaining units have different arrangenents.” He said

enpl oyees stay at step J for four years, then four years at step
K. He said he doesn't know "if it ever caps."

Nunber 1907

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ said he knows that the adm nistration
has had a difficult tinme filling a nunber of positions, because
the argunent is that it's hard getting pay ranges that are high
enough. He asked if noving from a [range] 26 to a [range] 24
woul dn't be "noving in the opposite direction,” and what a 26
woul d be maki ng.

Number 1940

MR. SPENCER answered, "The previous director was nmaking one
dol lar, every two weeks, |less than the chief procurenent officer
woul d be under this." He explained that the savings would be
because of what is being done with the position. He reiterated
the reason "that this works in this particular situation," is
because the chief pr ocur enent officer is a statutorily

desi gnated position that can only be renoved for cause.
Number 2007

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ suggested that there is an interna
problem within the adm nistration. He said, "This all could be

obviated if we just had the chief procurenent officer ... becone
the ... director of the division." He nentioned there would
still [be] a pronotion, and added, "And then you wouldn't have
the cause issue.” He asked if that offer had been nade.

MR. SPENCER said not that he is aware of. He said [the
department] would still need a chief procurenent officer. In

response to a question by Representative Berkow tz, he expl ai ned
that the position cannot be left vacant because it is the head
of all the procurenent functions in the state and sets policy
for procurenent, as well as plays a role in appeals processes,
for exanple.

Nunber 2070

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -13- April 15, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked i f t he previ ously nment i oned
"l ongevity" is part of what the governor wants to elimnate.

MR. SPENCER answer ed no.
Nunmber 2085
CHAI R WEYHRAUCH announced that HB 248 was heard and hel d.

HB 243- EVALUATI ON OF AGENCY PROGRAMS

Nunber 2125

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH returned attention to HOUSE BILL NO 243, "An
Act establishing state agency program perfornance nanagenent and
audit powers in the Ofice of the Governor for the evaluation of
agency prograns; and providing for an effective date.™

Number 2133

JAY HOGAN, Deputy Director, Ofice of Minagenent & Budget (OVB),
Ofice of the Governor, said that although he was not present
during the previous discussion of HB 243 earlier in the neeting,
he has talked with the legislative auditor regarding the concept
of "reactivating this function.™

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH asked why a statute is necessary to reactivate a
function.

MR. HOGAN noted that there has been an internal audit function
"off and on" for as long as he has worked for the state.
Oiginally, he said, that function was in the Departnent of
Adm nistration and was noved over to OVB in 1983 when that
office originated. He continued as follows:

When we cane to deal with the issue of confidentiality

of audit records - which was a recommendation to us

from the attorney general - we discovered that there

never had been a statutory provision granting anyone

in the executive branch the authority to conduct

internal audits, even though they had been going on
probably since statehood.

Then in the m d-1990s, the function was scoped down to
basically a records-keeping function which exists
today in OMB. That is why we put in the authorization
to do audits. And we broadened the definition to

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -14- April 15, 2003



align with the governor's concept of nore focus on
managenent and performance of agencies and prograns.

Nunber 2245

MR. HOGAN said that when Governor Mirkowski took office, he
instructed the various departnents of state governnent to
perform internal audits on thensel ves, for purposes of
preparation of the budget. He noted that sone agencies - for
exanple, the Departnent of Health and Social Services (DHSS) and
the Departnent of Transportation (DOT&F) - have internal audit
functions because of federal requirenments based on the federal
fundi ng those agencies receive. He added that the Departnent of
Labor has one or two internal auditors, as well.

MR. HOGAN said it is not the governor's intention to duplicate,
repl ace, or conbine those functions; rather, it's sinply to have
a small managenent audit team to go where the governor feels
there nmay be a problem [ The team] would in sonme cases use
techniques of internal auditing, and in other cases would use
managenent anal ysis techni ques.

Number 2330

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH referred to Section 3, which he said would anend
AS 44.109. He noted that [AS 44.19] is basically the OB
statutes; therefore, [OvB] would have the managenent authority
over the adm nistration because of the addition to the statute.

MR. HOGAN confirnmed that statenent.

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH asked M. Hogan if it is his intent, as
representative of the adm nistration, to have the papers that
are referred to in [Section 3] be confidential from the public
and not available to the public under public records of request.

MR. HOGAN replied that the purpose of [Section 3] is to enulate
the |anguage that applies from legislation to the |egislative
audi tor. He said there is a tradition in auditing of keeping
wor k papers - details and nanmes, for exanple - confidential for
a nunber of reasons that he said the legislative auditor is
better versed in than he is. He continued as follows:

But what we attenpted to do was to use that very sane
| anguage, except, rather than <clearance from the
budget and audit commttee, our clearance would cone
from the governor. So, that's the only significant

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -15- April 15, 2003



change we nmade in that. And ... we're recomending it
for exactly the sane reason that the |legislative
auditor has that in the audit statutes today.

Nunber 2427

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH asked if the [D vision of Legislative Budget and
Audit] would have access to the records and anal yses that would
be performed [by OMVB] under Section 3 of HB 243.

MR. HOGAN stated his assunption that the division would [have

that access]. He added that [OvB] would want to advise the
governor of the division's interest. He noted that [OwB] found,
in doing its limted audits in January [2003], that it got
"trenmendous unofficial help" from the legislative auditor. He
said, "W would assune we would be able to return the sane
courtesy."”

Nunber 2469

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH said he wants the commttee to study the fisca
note, because it seens it wuld add a level of work.
Furthernore, he indicated wanting to have [the |anguage of
Section 3] analyzed by [Legislative Legal and Research
Servi ces] . He opined that anticipating [and alleviating] any
possible tension or dispute between the |egislative and
executive branch woul d serve everyone.

Nunber 2504

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said he doesn't have any problem with the
internal [audit] work papers, for exanple, being confidential,;
however, the [audit] reports being confidential "until released
by the governor” may set up the scenario where they m ght not be
released by the governor, and he said he sees that as a
potential problem

CHAI R WVEYHRAUCH said, "W'll have to get some analysis on that
point." He comrented that the fiscal note does not contenplate
the hiring of any new "audit-type fol ks."

Nunber 2550
MR. HOGAN responded that [the adm nistration] agonized over that
fiscal note. He noted that the governor has noved other

functions from his office to departnents, and in the process
sonme noney was saved, as well as three positions that would be

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -16- April 15, 2003



vacated as a result of the novenent of those agencies. He told
the commttee that that noney - approximtely $300,000 - and
those positions are dedicated to OVB should the |egislature
appropriate the governor's requested budget.

Nunmber 2596

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM referred to M. Hogan's previous mention of
an [audit] team and commented that that would require new duties
that aren't within the scope of the current funding. He said he
woul d appreciate a [nore conprehensive] fiscal note.

MR. HOGAN said, "All right, sir."
Nunmber 2654

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ noted that the last two lines of
Section 3 are distinct from the |anguage <contained in
Adm ni strative O der 202. He said he finds that difference to
be substantial, and he is curious to know why it has becone nore
restrictive in law, as opposed to the adm nistrative order.

Nunmber 2680
MR. HOGAN expl ai ned as foll ows:

The adm nistrative order cannot enhance the law, so,
we were bound in the admnistrative order to not
attenpt to wite a statute. In the Act - including
the release, which [Chair Wyhrauch] asked about -
again, we copied that statute of the [Joint Commttee
on Legislative Budget and Audit and the Division of
Legislative Audit]. Currently - and ever since the
commnttee was forned - the [Joint Conmttee on
Legi sl ative Budget and Audit] nust approve for rel ease
any audit conducted by [the Division of] Legislative

Audi t .

They do it in two stages: [first, a] confidential
review docunent; and then later, after that period has
expired, a final report. So, we attenpted to rewite
that provision to apply on the executive side. And,

rather than have the [Joint Conmttee on Legislative
Budget and Audit] do the release, the governor would
do the rel ease. So that's sort of the history behind
why we chose to do it that way.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -17- April 15, 2003



Nunber 2787

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH said the comrittee would be getting sone |ega
anal ysis of [Section 3] before the next hearing on HB 243.

[ HB 243 was heard and hel d. ]

HB 134- CORRECTI ONAL FACI LI TY EXPANSI ON

[ Cont ai ns di scussion of SB 65 and HB 55.]
Nunber 2790

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH announced that the next order of business was
HOUSE BILL NO 134, "An Act authorizing the Departnent of
Corrections to enter into agreenments with nunicipalities for new
or expanded public correctional facilities in the Fairbanks
North Star Borough, the Matanuska-Susitna Borough, Bethel, and
the Municipality of Anchorage.”

Nunber 2799

The commttee took a brief at-ease.

Nunber 2800

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noved to adopt the proposed committee
substitute (CS) for HB 134, Version 23-LS0563\D, Luckhaupt,

3/31/03, as a work draft. There being no objection, Version D
was before the conmttee.

Number 2821

REPRESENTATIVE BILL STOLTZE, Alaska State Legislature, as
sponsor of HB 134, noted that on page 2, line 19, there is a
numeri cal error. The nunber should read "$11, 000", not

"$14, 600", he pointed out.

Nunmber 2844

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH asked if there was any objection to [Amendnent
1] changing "$14,600" to "$11, 000" on page 2, line 19 of Version
D. There being none, Amendnent 1 was adopt ed.

Nunmber 2860

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 18- April 15, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE referred to a handout [available in the
commttee packet] entitled, "DOC Responses To HB 134 Questions
Rai sed By Conmittee Menbers In HSTA Hearing - 04/01/03." He
referred to another handout [also available in the conmmttee
packet] entitled, "Departnent of Corrections FY 2008 Prison Bed
Cost Conparison,” which shows the cost conparison between
[current use of] the Arizona facility, building a private prison
[as proposed in HB 55], and a public prison detail [as proposed
in HB 134].

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE said he is still purporting that HB 134
and its conpanion bill in the Senate, SB 65, are the best
options for Alaska; HB 134 is fiscally conpetitive and has sone
advant ages, notw thstanding the advantages of the increase in

enpl oynent through construction, for exanple. He said, "Qur
corrections nodel has shown that we have a professionally manned
and safe nodel of public safety for corrections.” He stated his

hope that the commttee would advance [the nodel offered in
HB 134].

Number 2939

MARC ANTRIM Conm ssioner, Departnment of Corrections (DOC), in
response to a question by Chair Wyhrauch, confirned that the
previously cited handout regarding the DOC s answers to HB 134
questions is two pages, and attached to the back of it are two
ot her pages that are not nunbered sequentially, which offer an
"Al aska Construction Cost Conparison.”

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH referred to the previously <cited handout
regarding the prison bed cost conparison and asked why FY 08 was
chosen.

COW SSIONER ANTRIM explained that FY 08 is when the other
projects |[for the proposed private prison and the proposed
public prison] would "come on line."

TAPE 03-40, SIDE B
Number 2965

COM SSIONER ANTRIM in response to a question by Chair
Weyhrauch regarding whether this analysis is an updating of
preexi sting data, said he thinks that the proposals in the past
have been so different that it would be safe to say that a
conparison of this type has not been done. That, he added, is
one of the reasons that the debate has gotten "so nuddi ed up."

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -19- April 15, 2003



Nunmber 2935

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH renmarked that he has never seen an accurate
estinmate on construction costs in Al aska.

COMM SSI ONER ANTRI M responded by referring to the second page of
the ["Alaska Construction Cost Conparison”]. He pointed out
that the "Anchorage Jail," at $264 a square foot, IS
hi ghl i ght ed. One of the commttee nenbers, he said, had asked
at the April 1 hearing on HB 134 for a conparison between per-
foot prison construction costs and other construction costs in
the state. He commented that the square-foot cost of the jail
in Anchorage is |[within the range] of the other public
construction costs |isted.

Number 2877

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH recalled that at a previous hearing, perhaps
regarding HB 55, a testifier had revealed that the construction
in the Anchorage jail facility would be primarily for detainees
of INS [Immgration and Naturalization Service, now replaced by
agencies under the U S. Departnment of Honeland Security]. He
said the expansion of that facility was, he thought, 100-percent
rei mbursable from federal noney available for the INS detainees.
He asked Conmissioner Antrimif that is his understanding.

Number 2864

COMM SSI ONER ANTRI M answered, "That is correct."” He said the
U.S. Mrshall service requested that project and brought it to
[the DOC] to pursue. He said INS activities and activities of
the offices of the US. Mrshall in Anchorage and Juneau are
expected to increase.

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH asked if the legislature needs to do anything in
order for the state to obtain those federal funds to begin the
expansion of the Anchorage facility for the I NS detai nees.

COWMM SSI ONER ANTRI M stated his understanding that sinply passing
[HB 134] will give "us" the federal receipt authority to accept
those funds fromthe federal governnment, once they are allocated
by Congress.

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH asked, "Is that contenplated by HB 134?" He

clarified, "That proposal would go forward if [HB] 134 becones
| aw. "

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 20- April 15, 2003



COMM SSI ONER ANTRI M r esponded yes.

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH asked, "Is the expansion of the Anchorage
facility and obtaining the federal funds for those INS detainees
- is that sonething that should be settled, in case sonething

untoward [should] happen to ... these bills through the
process, to ensure that that one actually does conme into
ef fect ?"

COW SSI ONER ANTRI M suggested that Representative Stoltze may be
better suited to answer that question. Notw thstanding that, he
said he would recommend that "we just keep involved in one
package. " He added, "W feel fairly confident that noney is
going to come our way."

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH interjected, "But only if [HB] 134 passes in its
present shape. |Is that correct?"

COM SSIONER ANTRIM said he thinks that the federal funding
woul d be received anyway. He added, "Really, this is whether we
can receive it and present it to the legislature for
aut hori zation for construction.™

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH said, "So, you nean that the State of Al aska
will get the federal funds for construction of the INS jail
expansi on of Anchorage, whether we pass a |l aw or not?"

COM SSIONER ANTRIM clarified that it is [DOC s] anticipation
that the two separate bodies [the U S. Congress and the Al aska
State Legislature] will be doing their work and working toward a
conmon pur pose.

REPRESENTATI VE = BERKOW TZ, regarding the subject of those
individuals who are going to be detained, stated his
understanding that the current practice is to ship them out
pretty quickly, primarily to Portl and. He asked, "Are we going
to be holding them longer in state?" He indicated that there
are "attorney access issues" he nust raise.

COMM SSIONER ANTRIM reiterated that the U S. Marshals predict
increased activity, and he noted that the anticipation is that
those held in the Anchorage area wll be there |onger. Most
detainees go to the detention center in Seattle, and then on to
Portland. Currently, he noted that there is a contract to hold
50 prisoners statewide. At any given tine, he said, there is an
average of 80-90 in the system - currently that nunber is 110,

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -21- April 15, 2003



whi ch exceeds the contract by over double. He opined that the
proj ect [proposal for] 200 beds is reasonable.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ asked, regarding those individuals
[being detained], if [the state] is paid a nightly cost by the
feds, and is "making noney on it."

COWM SSI ONER ANTRI M answer ed yes. He said that is essentially
how t he cost of staffing the expansion wll be covered.

Number 2635
REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noved to adopt [ Conceptual Amendnment 2], a
set of four witten amendnents that had been presented on one
page, wth three handwitten changes. Wth the handwitten
changes, Conceptual Anendnent 2 read as follows [origina
punctuation provided, but sone text formatting changed]:

Amendrent #1:

HB 134 is anmended on Page 2, line 5, to read:

(b) The Departnment of Corrections, not |ater than

July 1, 2008, nmay enter into an agreement with the

Municipality of Seward for expansion of an existing

facility by up to 400 beds.

Amendnent #2:

HB 134 is anended on Page 2, line 6, to read:

(c) The authorizations given by (a) and (b) of
this section are subject to the follow ng conditions:

Amendnent #3:

HB 134 is anended on Page 2, line 21, to read:
...%$14,600 a bed for the Fairbanks, Anchorage,

and Seward facilities, with an adjustnent for

inflation for the Seward costs.

Amrendnent #4:

HB 134 is anmended on Page 2, line 22, to read:

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -22- April 15, 2003



(4) Expansion of the existing facility in Seward
is conditional upon the Minicipality of Seward doing
the followng to the satisfaction of the Departnent of
Corrections: making Jland available for housing
devel opnent . Expansion of the existing facility in
Seward is also conditional upon the Alaska Vocati onal
Technical Center developing a corrections training
pr ogram

Nunmber 2593

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ objected for purposes of discussion.
He asked if there is a reason why HB 134 is limted to
desi gnat ed geographic areas, rather than giving the departnent
the authority to expand facilities that exist throughout the
state. For exanple, he said he noticed that the Lenon Creek
Correctional Facility is not |isted.

Number 2579

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE responded that [the designated geographic
areas were chosen] based upon the greatest need and "the nost
econom c prisons.”

Number 2559

COMWM SSI ONER  ANTRIM nentioned studying where the nobst at-
capacity, at-risk facilities were, and which facilities serve as
regional gathering centers for prisoners from outlying small
comunities. He said, "And clearly, we' ve got mmjor problens at
Bet hel and Fairbanks, which is why those two were put on [a]

priority list." He reiterated that [the proposal to expand the
facility in] Anchorage is based on the federal governnent's
needs. In response to a question by Representative Berkowtz,

he said yes, initially the Spring Creek Correctional Facility
was excluded for a reason and [ Conceptual Anendnent 2] speaks to
t hat . He explained, "W felt the priority at this tinme was to
put beds in the Anchorage area, where the prisoners originate
from rather than doing a mmjor expansion [in] an outlying
area." He nentioned future years, but then returned attention
to [ Conceptual Amendnent 2].

Nunber 2485
REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked whether "Amendnent #3" of Conceptua

[ Amendnent 2] should read $14,600 or should read $11,000 [to
reflect Anendnent 1].

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -23- April 15, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON answer ed, " No, that's also back to
$11, 000. "

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE stated, "That should stay at $14,600.
These are ... smaller expansions, and they don't have the
econony of the 1,200-bed facility, so that needs to stay at that
hi gher nunber, unfortunately.”

Nunber 2449

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ recol |l ected that at one point there had
been an intention to expand the Spring Creek Correctional
Facility.

Number 2438

COW SSIONER ANTRIM said that 1is correct. He said that
essentially, all of the "dirt work"”™ has been done in the area,
as well as nuch of the supporting infrastructure, for exanple,
sewer and water, so many of the expenses normally associated
with a project |ike that have been taken care of.

Nunmber 2422

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON, speaking to [Conceptual Amendnent 2] as
it relates to the Spring Creek Correctional Facility, expounded
upon Conmmi ssioner Antrims answer by listing additional parts of
the facility that are already in place. He said the facility
was designed with three nodules on one side and is ready for
anot her three adjacent to them

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noted that the Spring Creek Correctional
Facility has had a problem retaining correctional officers,
which he said brings up the question of whether there may be
enough people who want to live in an area that is not highly
popul at ed. He noted that [Conceptual Anendnent 2] would nake
expansion of existing facility in Seward conditional upon making
| and avail able for housing devel opnent. He nentioned that the
Al aska Vocational Technical Center (AVIEC) in Seward is starting
a pre-training program for correctional officers and honel and
security [agents], and those who train there from other smaller
comunities my becone famliar with Seward during that pre-
training [and may want to renmain there].

Nunber 2242

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 24- April 15, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG sai d he thinks [Conceptual Amendnent 2]
is a good idea. Regarding the amendnent, he asked why there is
only an adjustment for inflation in the Seward facility, but not
in the other facilities.

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE replied that that's because there is a
del ayed date; [the expansion of the existing facility in Seward]
is conditional upon the city developing sonme of t he
i nfrastructure. He said he would love to see a facility on the
[ Kenai] Peninsula enploy the residents there.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG referred to the |last sentence [of
Conceptual Anmendnment 2], which states that the expansion of the
Seward facility would also be conditional upon developing a

correctional training program He said, "lI'd hate to see this
stym ed because they refuse to or couldn't do sonething like
that."

Nunber 2140

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON reiterated that Seward is developing a
program for training honeland security agents, for exanple. He
said the city is working with the DOC in this effort. He said
he thinks [Conceptual Amendnment 2] encourages Seward to proceed
with that program He opined that the pre-training program is
needed to renedy a statewide problem in retaining correctiona

of ficers.

Nunmber 2088

COMM SSI ONER ANTRIM said he thinks the point of the training
program is to get people to consider being a correctional
of ficer as a career nove.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he wunderstands that. He said
there would probably be sone kind of a fiscal note regarding
this issue, and he said he is just wondering if sone kind of
direction [from the legislature] requesting [Seward] to do this
IS necessary.

Nunmber 2048

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE responded that he is not sure that there
would be a fiscal note, because the facility trains people for
jobs and would be training people to work in jobs that pay
pretty well and that actually exist right in town.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -25- April 15, 2003



COM SSI ONER ANTRIM in response to a question by Representative
G uenberg, said AVTEC is always |ooking for new direction, so he
thinks that it will "grasp this pretty quickly.” He referred to
wording that had been deleted by the handwitten changes to
Conceptual Anmendnent 2 before it was presented to the comittee:
"devel oping economc opportunities in the Minicipality for
spousal enploynent of facility staff.” He said that would be a
tough thing to ask of the city, but said he hopes Seward wi |
work diligently to devel op econom c opportunities for people [so
they will want to remain in that conmmunity]

Nunmber 1988

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said the city would be happy to devel op
any kind of enploynent base, but the foregoing wording that was
omtted was "just going too far."

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noted that [because that wording had
al ready been crossed out] the word "and" shoul d be added and the
"e" in "Expansion" should be |ower case; therefore, ["Amendnent
#4" of Conceptual Anmendnent 2] would read as foll ows:

Amendnent #4
HB 134 is anended on Page 2, line 22, to read:

(4) Expansion of the existing facility in Seward
is conditional upon the Minicipality of Seward doing
the followng to the satisfaction of the Departnent of
Corrections: making Jland available for housing
devel opment and expansion of the existing facility in
Seward is also conditional upon the Alaska Vocati onal
Technical Center developing a corrections training
program

[ There was no notion to adopt the foregoing anendnent to
Conceptual Anmendnent 2, but it was treated as adopted.]

Number 1930
CHAI R WEYHRAUCH indicated that there would be changes to the
fiscal note if [Conceptual Anmendnent 2, as anended] were

adopt ed.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON referred to page 2, [beginning on] line 24
[of HB 134], which read as foll ows:

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 26- April 15, 2003



paynents under the |ease may not exceed $16, 700 a bed
for the Bethel facility and $14,600 a bed for the
Fai r banks and Anchorage facilities;

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said the $14,600 is the sane nunber as for
the Fairbanks facility, because of the size of the facility. He
expl ai ned that [Conceptual Anmendnment 2, as anended] would be to
"add Seward to Fairbanks and Anchorage."”

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH said, "By adding Seward, vyou' re changing the
fiscal note."

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said, "I guess we are, because what we're
doing is adding the nunber of beds." He added that it's
condi tional .

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE indicated that because nuch of this does
not take place until FY 08, he doesn't expect it to change the
accuracy of the first part of the fiscal note, although it nay
change the second part of the fiscal note.

Number 1823

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH asked if there were any other questions or
comment s about [ Conceptual Amendnent 2, as anended].

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ wi t hdrew hi s obj ecti on.
Nunmber 1815

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH announced that the notion to adopt Conceptual
Amendnent 2 [as anended] was approved w t hout objection.

Nunmber 1783
JI' M LECRONE, Busi ness Agent, Public Safety Enpl oyees Association

(PSEA), a retired correctional officer, said it is rewarding to
hear the conmittee discussing the fiscal responsibility of a

public prison, and he offered sone conments. He related his
belief that incarcerating crimnals is a function of governnent,
not the private sector. He noted that in June 2002, Thomas Kane

[ Assistant Director for Information, Policy and Public Affairs
for the U S Departnent of Justice Federal Bureau of Prisons]
told US. Senator Don Nickles that the federal bureau had
concerns regarding [the ability of] private prisons to confine
and manage nedi um and hi gh-security inmates.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -27- April 15, 2003



MR. LECRONE said there are many statistics regarding the higher
nunber of assaults in private prisons, both on staff and on
i nmat es. He noted that there are fiscal r eper cussi ons
associated with a higher assault rate. GCenerally, he said, when
there is an assault in a prison, local |aw enforcenent [becones
invol ved] and charges are filed. The cost of investigation,
prosecution, court fees, appointed attorney fees, appeals, and
future incarceration fall to the State of Al aska, whether it's a
private or public prison; therefore, he said, it behooves
everyone to keep assault rates down. "Qbviously,"” he added,
"experience proves we do it better in public facilities.”

MR. LECRONE noted that a six-year study done in California
showed that the public [prison] sector had 11 escapes, while the
private [prison] sector had 200 escapes, although it managed
40,000 |ess inmates. M. Lecrone said he hopes the conmttee
will keep the security factors in mnd while |ooking at the cost
factors. He said he appreciates [HB 134].

Nunmber 1600

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH informed the commttee that Lieutenant Dan
Lowden, from the Departnent of Public Safety, was available to
answer questions.

Nunber 1510

DEE HUBBARD testified that she is a resident of Sterling,
Al aska, on the Kenai Peninsula. She said she supports HB 134,
whi ch she said is fiscally conpetitive. She enphasized that she
is confortable knowi ng that [the proposal] would be under state
control . She told the committee that she has many concerns
about privatization [of prisons]. Primarily, she noted, there
are many statutes governing the operation of public prisons, but
none governing the operation of private prisons.

V. HUBBARD told Representative Seaton that she likes
[ Conceptual Anmendnent 2]. She said the Kenai Peninsula is
al ways | ooki ng eagerly for any kind of econom c devel opnent, and
[HB 134] is a great idea.

M5. HUBBARD said the pre-trial beds are desperately needed now.
She added that the transportation costs are enornous, and [HB
134] will cut down on those costs. She concluded by saying that
other testifiers have done a better job of expressing her
feel i ngs.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 28- April 15, 2003



Nunber 1400

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG stated his appreciation of M. Hubbard
traveling to Juneau to testify.

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH noted that the commttee had also received
emails from Ms. Hubbard, and he conplinented her on her job as a
citizen who keeps her eye on the |egislature.

Nunber 1361

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said he appreciates the analysis that M.
Hubbard provi ded the committee.

Nunber 1333

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH announced that HB 134 was heard and hel d.

ADJ QURNMENT

Nunber 1322

There being no further business before the commttee, the House

State Affairs Standing Conmittee neeting was adjourned at 9:23
a.m

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -29- April 15, 2003



